
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Leslie Manning 

direct line 0300 300 5132 
date 12 February 2010 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date & Time 
Tuesday, 23 February 2010 10.00 a.m. 

 
Venue at 

Committee Room 1, Council Offices, High Street North, 
Dunstable 

 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs J N Young (Chairman), A R Bastable (Vice-Chairman), D J Gale, 
Mrs R B Gammons, J Kane, Ms C Maudlin, Mrs M Mustoe, P Snelling and 
P Williams 
 

 
[Named Substitutes: 
 
Cllrs: Mrs C F Chapman MBE, P A Duckett, M Gibson, Ms A M W Graham 
and A Shadbolt] 

 
 

All other Members of the Council - on request 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 
MEETING 



 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitute Members. 
 

2. MINUTES 
  

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting held on 26 
January 2010 (copy to follow). 
 

3. MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
  

To receive from Members declarations and the nature thereof in relation to: 
 
(a) Personal Interests in any agenda item. 
 
(b) Personal and prejudicial Interests in any agenda item. 
 
(c) Any political whip in relation to any agenda item. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
  

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of 
communication. 
 

5. PETITIONS 
  

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public 
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

6. QUESTIONS, STATEMENTS OR DEPUTATIONS 
  

To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

7. CALL-IN 
  

To consider any matter referred to the Committee for a decision in relation to 
the call-in of a decision. 
 



8. REQUESTED ITEMS 
  

Members are advised that, under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the 
Constitution, the following matter has been referred to the Committee for 
consideration at the request of a Member: 
 
Highways Customer Process 
 
Procedure Rule 3.3 of Part D2 of the Constitution sets out the options which 
the Committee has in relation to the request. 
 
Note: Members are reminded that this item was withdrawn from the agenda of 
the last meeting. 
  

(report attached) 
 

9. DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY TASK FORCE RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

To consider any recommendations received from the Development Strategy 
Task Force in accordance with the requirements set out in the adopted 
Guidance Document. 
 

 
REPORTS 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

10 Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan Document 
(DPD) for Central Bedfordshire North 
 
To recommend an amended shortlist of possible Gypsy 
and Traveller sites, including the pitch distribution for 
each of the listed sites, for inclusion within the Preferred 
Sites consultation document. 
 

*  17 - 32 

11 Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options Consultation 
 
To consider the Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options 
document and recommend what further action should be 
taken. 
 

*  33 - 102 

12 Quarter 3 Performance Report 
 
To receive performance information for the Sustainable 
Communities Directorate for the Quarter 3 period. 
 

*  103 - 110 

13 Quarter 3 Budget Management Report 
 
To receive budget management information for the 
Sustainable Communities Directorate for the Quarter 3 
period. 
 
 

*  111 - 124 



14 Work Programme 2009-2010 
 
To consider and agree the Work Programmes for both 
the Committee and the Development Strategy Task 
Force and examine the need to establish any additional 
Task Forces. 
 

*  125 - 138 

15 Date of Next Meeting 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Committee will be 
held at 10.00 am on 25 March 2010 in the Council 
Chamber, Priory House, Chicksands. 
 

*   

 



 
 
 
Meeting: Sustainable Communities O&SC 

Date: 23 February 2010 

Subject: Highways customer process 

Report of: Director of Sustainable Communities  

Summary: This report provides a briefing on the highways contract and customer service 
provision. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Basil Jackson, Assistant Director for Highways & Transport 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Executive/Council 

 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
The Council priorities affected by this paper are: 
 

• creating safer communities; 
 
Financial: 

Service response standards are agreed within the highways managing agent contract (i.e. 10 
working days).  If Members require more stringent response standards then this will incur a 
cost. 
 
Legal: 

The Highways Act 1980 requires highway authorities to keep public highways open and remove 
obstructions which may affect the use and safety of the highway.  The Authority uses customer 
requests to aid its understanding of the condition of the highway network in order to help meet 
this statutory obligation. 
 
A large managing agent contract (MAC) dictates how our highway works are delivered.  
However, being a £20 million pa contract, it is of strategic importance to both CBC and our 
provider Amey LG.  As such, the parties have (where possible) preferred to move issues 
forward in partnership. 
 
Risk Management: 

Any significant changes to response standards could increase the amount of contact we are 
required to have with the public (e.g. introducing customer call backs).  Such impacts would 
need to be properly understood and resourced prior to changes taking place. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 5



Equalities/Human Rights: 

None 
 
Community Safety: 

Creating an attractive and accessible public realm has a part to play in getting people out and 
about, especially the more vulnerable members of the community who might experience 
isolation.  Utilising customer feedback is an essential part of developing an accessible public 
realm. 
 
Sustainability: 

The effective maintenance of our highway network is a key part of accommodating Central 
Bedfordshire’s growth agenda and ensuring that we are “open for business”. 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. The Committee is asked to note and comment on the report. 
 

 
 
Background 
 
1. 
 

In the mid 1990s the former Bedfordshire County Council outsourced its highway 
services to separate providers responsible for consultancy services and works 
services respectively.  In addition, many client functions across the authority including 
customer services were also outsourced.  At the time, outsourcing to private sector 
partners did realise some benefits such as greater resource flexibility.  However in 
highways, because two partner organisations were involved, it also led to a number of 
difficulties such as customer confusion as to who was actually delivering the service 
and a certain blame culture became evident between the two partners. 
 

2. 
 

To resolve the majority of the above issues, in 2004/05 the former Bedfordshire 
County Council tendered and awarded a new contract to employ a single service 
provider.  This resulted in the present contract establishing a partnership with Amey 
Local Government (Amey LG) that commenced on 1st October 2005 covering the 
delivery of all highway services.  The type of contract that was adopted is known as a 
Managing Agent Contract (MAC).  In a MAC the client (CBC) is responsible for setting 
budgets and service objectives; the contractor is responsible for delivery of the 
service.  This type of contract, used on certain parts of the motorway and trunk road 
network, was one of the first to be used in local government and has won a number of 
awards. 
 

3. The highways contract deals with all forms of road repair, from the maintenance of 
bridges, to highway grass cutting and salting the roads in winter.  It also deals with 
improvement schemes from new lengths of footway to the Leighton Linslade 20mph 
zone. 
 

4. CBC manages the contract through performance indicators, which are set annually by 
the Network Board so that Amey is incentivised to align its performance to the 
Council’s objectives.  The Network Board consists of the Portfolio Holder for Safer 
and Stronger Communities, the Director of Sustainable Communities, the Assistant 
Director for Highways and Transport and one other senior highway officer from CBC, 
plus three senior managers from Amey, all working together to direct the contract. 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 6



5. Within CBC there is a small team of four CBC staff who oversee the highways 
contract, its finance and performance.  All other staff engaged in works on the 
highway are employed by, or through Amey Local Government.  This means that 
Amey carry out many of the services a client would usually provide in-house, such as 
developing the annual programme of works.  This includes consultation with 
members, parish / town councils and the public.  After consultation is complete, the 
Executive will approve the final programme.  In this way Amey are fully responsible 
for what takes place on the ground and so accountability is clear. 
 

How is the highway service presently set up to deal with customer enquiries? 
 
6. For all customers, the first point of contact for highway issues within Central 

Bedfordshire Council is, and should be, the highway helpdesk; which is staffed by CBC 
employees.  This has been set up to make it easy for people to report faults by 
telephone on 0300 300 8049, or by email to highways@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk.  
The helpdesk staff have been specifically trained in how to deal with highway enquiries.  
All enquiries are logged and customers are given a unique reference number.  To follow 
the progress of their issue customers need to either call back and quote the number or 
check on-line by entering the number and their postcode.  This system has been 
established as being the most cost effective way to properly manage the large volume 
of highway issues and requests we receive each week (approximately 500 pw) and 
officers continually stress the importance of using the above mechanisms when 
speaking to members, parishes and the general public. 
 

7. Issues reported to the highway helpdesk are responded to within agreed timescales; 

• Potholes, surface defects, kerbing, general highway faults - 5 working days  

• Street lighting faults - 10 working days  

• All requests for new additions to the highway, e.g.: signs, lines or zebra 
crossings - 20 working days 

 
8. Ward members, together with town / parish councils receive a weekly report of all 

highway service requests within their area along with the latest status of those requests.   
Officers are refining this report as there is room for improvement in how the information 
is presented. 
 

9. It should be noted that choosing to use alternative mechanisms slows down our 
response times and makes it difficult to monitor our performance.  It should also be 
noted that other ways of working could require additional staff resources - which would 
require additional funding. 
 

10. When highway issues are received by letter they are logged and passed to Amey for 
reply.  Amey is currently contracted to reply to correspondence within 10 working days.  
So for the majority of people reporting a highway maintenance issue using the highway 
helpdesk enables a quicker response to be given (i.e. within 5 working days). 
 

11. To work more closely with members and local communities, Amey have established 
Area Teams (each comprising an Area Steward and an Area Technician) so that parish 
/ town councils and ward members have direct contact with professionals who can react 
quickly to service requests.  The Area Teams are allocated funding by CBC to deal with 
local highways issues and are tasked to liaise with elected members and parish / town 
councils.  Contact details for the area teams have previously been sent to members and 
are attached in Appendix A of this paper. 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 7



12. One of the major challenges at the start of the Managing Agent Contract (MAC) was to 
gain the confidence of service users.  We have seen significant success over the last 
four years as illustrated in the map shown in Appendix B that shows town and parish 
council satisfaction levels for 2005/06 and 2008/09 in a red, amber, green format.  The 
2005/6 results show perceptions for the period prior to the MAC commencing in 
October 2005.  The latest survey shows that far more communities are satisfied with the 
Council’s highway service and we hope to achieve further improvements in satisfaction 
in future years. 
 

13. Each town / parish council has nominated a Highway Representative providing a 
dedicated link with the Amey area teams, who are in regular contact with each other 
throughout the year.  Each Highway Representative has been offered training on the 
Council’s priorities and has been issued with a manual to assist them in identifying the 
correct response to problems and reporting issues.  In addition they are consulted 
annually on Parish Partnership Funded schemes and when the five-year programme is 
being developed.  This link provides a close relationship for understanding and 
responding to community needs. 
 

14. The majority of issues can be dealt with through the processes described above.  It is 
important to use the formal mechanisms for requesting a service as our systems are set 
up to enable those closest to local area (i.e. area teams) deliver the necessary 
solutions.  However, when issues need to be escalated, the following escalation 
process has been established: 
 
1. Contact your local Area Team - if that fails then; 
2. Contact your local District Manager - if that fails then; 
3. Contact the Watchman-in-Chief on 0845 3656 139 - if that fails then; 
4. Contact the Assistant Director, Highways & Transport. 
 

Proposed Customer Contact Improvements 
 
15. Officers recognise the need to: 

 
• Reduce the number of customer contact points 
• Encourage greater use of online customer self –service reporting 
 

16. To achieve this the issues that have currently been identified for improvement are: 
 

• There has been a tendency for engineers, when responding to helpdesk 
enquiries, to write in jargon or abbreviations that the public struggle to decipher.  

 
• Introducing PIs into the customer feedback process to enable robust monitoring 

and auditing, and building these PIs into the contract management process. 
 

17. In order to address the above issues, the following actions have been identified for 
implementation: 
 

 (a) 
 

Work is underway to improve the quality of information provided by the Area 
Teams in response to customer enquiries via the helpdesk.  This includes 
training in Plain English and the provision of “standard responses” for 
engineers to pick from as appropriate. 
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 8



 (b) 
 

Bedfordshire Highways undertake a monthly analysis of enquiry data to 
ascertain the percentage of queries that have been successfully closed down 
(Green), are currently under review (Amber) or have not received a response 
(Red). These are measured by means of a formal Partnership Performance 
Indicator (PPI).   The format of this indicator, and its associated target, will be 
reviewed for 2010/11 to ensure that performance is directed to fully achieving 
the Council’s objectives. 
 

 
Appendices: 
Appendix A –  Central Bedfordshire Highway Area Map 
Appendix B –  Bedfordshire Town and Parish Council Highway Maintenance 
   Annual Survey Results 
Appendix C –  Facts and figures about CBC’s highway asset 

 

Agenda Item 8
Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



DISTRICT MANAGER Neil Hollis
AREA STEWARD Patrick Connolly
AREA TECHNICIAN John Chandler
DISTRICT MANAGER Neil Hollis
AREA STEWARD Jill Cross

AREA TECHNICIANS Emma Kynes
DISTRICT MANAGER Neil Hollis
AREA STEWARD Mark MacDonald
AREA TECHNICIAN Paul Joyce
DISTRICT MANAGER Anthony Hood
AREA STEWARD Alan Trille

AREA TECHNICIANS Geoff Parrott
DISTRICT MANAGER Anthony Hood
AREA STEWARD Nick Carofalo
AREA TECHNICIAN Kathleen Wilmshurst
DISTRICT MANAGER Anthony Hood
AREA STEWARD Chris Clarke
AREA TECHNICIAN Maureen Ridgley

Pat Dowling
Joe Kelly

DEPOT MANAGER Ron Brodie

NRSWA MANAGER Carolyn Huckle
NRSWA INSPECTOR David Fuller
SAFETY INSPECTOR Charlotte Dunham
NRSWA INSPECTOR Ken Britton

David Jaques
Roger Croft

SENIOR NRSWA INSPECTOR Barry Simons

Penny Turner
Harrold Curson

ENVIROMENTAL MANAGER Clive Parker
Andy Clark
David Hull

Alex Carnegie
Peter Hull
Silv Chelaru
Jason Hackett

DEPOT SUPERVISORS

STRUCTUAL MAINTENCE

MID

SOUTH
SAFETY INSPECTORS

C
E
N
T
R
A
L
 B
E
D
F
O
R
D
S
H
IR
E

AREA 3

BRIDGES

STREET LIGHTING

AREA 4

AREA 5

AREA 6

AREA 7

AREA 8

DUNSTABLE 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 11



P
age 12

T
his page is intentionally left blank



A
genda Item

 8
P

age 13



P
age 14

T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 

 
Facts and Figures about CBC’s Highways Asset 

 
 
A Roads  147.5km 
B Roads  72.2 km 
C Roads 336.6km 
UC Roads  773km 
TOTAL  1329.3km 
 
Gullies   43,679 
 
lighting columns 21,598 
  
Lit signs   1366 
 
Bollards   578 
 
Structures  360 

Agenda Item 8
Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 
Date: 23 February 2010 

Subject: Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan Document (DPD) for Central 
Bedfordshire North 
 

Report of: Councillor Nicols, Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Development 

Summary: The report seeks the consideration and recommendation of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) on a variance of the Gypsy and Traveller 
site and pitch distribution report agreed on 4 January 2010. This follows 
the loss of one site option known as Land off New Road, Clifton for 
reasons that will be expanded upon in this report.  
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Richard Fox, 0300 300 8000 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: The Wards in the former Mid Bedfordshire Council area 

Function of: Executive 

 
 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
The Local Development Framework is a fundamental part of the Council’s key aim 
to manage growth effectively.   
 
Financial: 

The production of the Development Plan Document will require ongoing Officer 
input, particularly during the consultation period.  
 
Legal: 

The Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan Document, when adopted, will be part 
of the statutory development plan for the area. 
 
Risk Management: 

The adoption of the Development Plan Document will reduce the risk of the Council 
losing planning appeals for Gypsy and Traveller sites. 
 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 17



Equalities/Human Rights: 

In recent years, there has been a shift from traditional, land use planning to a broader 
approach, which recognises the key role of spatial planning in promoting sustainable 
and cohesive communities. A consideration of equality and diversity must lie at the 
heart of this vision.  
 
Community Development/Safety: 

The Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan Document is intended to reduce the 
incidences of unauthorised encampments which can create community 
development issues. 
 
Sustainability: 

The Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan Document when adopted will form part 
of the Local Development Framework. The report identifies the location of Gypsy 
and Traveller, Transit and Travelling Showpeople sites in accordance with the 
accommodation needs expressed in the East of England Plan. The Local 
Development Framework embraces sustainable development as its overarching aim 
and has and will continue to be subject to a sustainability appraisal.  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 That the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
recommend that the Director of Sustainable Communities in consultation 
with the Portfolio Holder: 
 

 (i)  Approves an amended Gypsy and Traveller site list to include land 
east of A6001, Hitchin Rd and opposite Henlow Camp (RAF). 
 

 (ii)  Approves the pitch distribution between the site options as 
detailed in Table 3 of the report for consultation in the Preferred 
Sites consultation document.  
 

 
 
 1. Background 
 
1.1 Following the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 4 January 2010, the 

recommended shortlist of sites is no longer able to meet the need for 40 
permanent Gypsy and Traveller pitches to 2016 due to the loss of the option 
at land south of Clifton and east of New Road, Clifton.  The consequence of 
this is the need to find a site capable of accommodating the 8 pitch deficit left 
by the removal of the Clifton site.   
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 18



1.2 Today Members are asked to consider and recommend an alternative site list 
and pitch distribution to enable the Council to fulfil its requirement to 2016 in 
accordance with the East of England Regional Spatial Strategy. This 
provision to 2016 is in accordance with the current legislative framework and 
methodologies for determining need. 
 

2. The Shortlisted Sites Agreed on 4 January 2010 
 
2.1 The Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 4 

January 2010 recommended the following shortlist of sites: 
 
Table 1: List of Sites Shortlisted by OSC on 4 January 2010 
 
Site Name 
 

Parish 

Permanent Pitches  
Land rear of 197 Hitchin Road, Arlesey 
 

Arlesey 

1 Old Acres, Barton Road, Pulloxhill 
 

Pulloxhill 

Hermitage Lane, off Westoning Road, 
Greenfield 
 

Flitton and  
Greenfield 

Oak Tree Nursery & Magpie Farm, Upper 
Caldecote 
 

Northill 

Land between Common Road and Myers 
Road, South of Gypsy and Traveller site, 
Potton 
 

Potton 

Land south of Dunton Lane, Biggleswade 
 

Biggleswade 

Land south of Clifton and east of New Road, 
Clifton 
 

Clifton 

Transit Pitches  

Sutton Storage Compound, south of Sutton  
 

Sutton 

 
 

2.2 However following the OSC meeting it was brought to the Council’s attention 
that the land at New Road Clifton was sold to a private owner in 2001 and 
therefore no longer in the Council’s ownership.  The current site owner has 
stated that he has no interest in promoting part of the land for the purposes of 
a Gypsy and Traveller site.  This means that the site is no longer deliverable 
unless the Council is prepared to undertake a Compulsory Purchase Order, 
which is both time consuming and expensive. 
 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 19



2.3 Land at New Road Clifton was suggested for a minimum of 8 pitches which 
have now been lost from the total.  As such the distribution of pitches and list 
of sites will have to be revised to determine how 40 pitches can be distributed 
across the north part of Central Bedfordshire. 
 

2.4 The Estates Team are currently checking site ownership for all other 
shortlisted public sites.  The results of this will be fed back to the committee 
at the meeting.     
 

3. New Site Options and Pitch Distribution 
 
3.1 In order to replace land at New Road, Clifton, the highest scoring sites have 

been revisited.  These scores reflect the application of site criteria agreed by 
OSC on 1 September 2009.  The top five scoring sites and the reasons for 
their original rejection are as follows (please note that one of the top scoring 
sites at Arlesey has been proposed for shortlisting and therefore does not 
feature in this list): 
 

3.2 Table 2: List of Top Scoring Sites 
 
Site Name Score  Reasons for Rejection 

 
Land North of Arlesey Road, 
Stotfold 

142 This site was rejected at Task 
Force on 7 December 2009. 
The location is at the entrance 
site to settlement and therefore 
concerns were raised about the 
site being too exposed and 
having a detrimental visual 
impact.   
 

Land North of Arlesey Rd, 
Stotfold (larger parcel) 

139 This site was rejected at Task 
Force on 7 December 2009. 
The site forms part of a leisure 
centre development site. 
Concerns were raised that the 
site is too exposed and would 
have a detrimental visual 
impact.   
 

Land North of West Drive, 
Arlesey 

137 This site was dismissed during 
earlier considerations of the 
Gypsy and Traveller site 
options, prior to the publication 
of the Preferred Options 
consultation in Nov 2008. 
Concerns were raised about 
water logging on site and the 
difficult access from Arlesey 
High Street.   

Agenda Item 10
Page 20



 

Land between the A421 and 
Woburn Rd junction, Marston 
Moretaine 

133 This site was rejected at OSC 
on 4 January 2010. 
There is a possibility that this 
site is ecologically sensitive and  
further investigation would be 
required. The site is also 
adjacent to a flood plain and 
would require draining and 
raising.   
 

Land East of A6001, Hitchin Rd 
and opposite Henlow Camp 
(RAF) 

127 This was rejected at Task Force 
on 7 December 2009. 
Concerns were raised about the 
nearby doctors surgery being 
full and that the site is prone to 
water logging.   
 

 
 

3.3 With the loss of the Clifton site, Officers have undertaken a review of those 
top scoring sites (Table 2) in order to find a suitable replacement. Of those, 
the Henlow Camp site is considered to be the least constrained in planning 
terms and offers the most potential in meeting the pitch deficit by 
accommodating at least 10 pitches. Officers consider that the reasons for its 
rejection at Task Force on 7 December 2009 are surmountable when 
compared to those constraints identified for the other high scoring sites. 
Namely, there is potential within the existing health care system to meet the 
demand and secondly, the potential issues of flooding/water logging can 
through mediation works be overcome. Furthermore the site is highly 
accessible being located on the edge of the settlement, adjacent to a school 
and opposite RAF Henlow. Moreover, it is within walking distance of facilities 
in Henlow.   
 

3.4 With regards to the doctor’s surgery capacity, NHS Bedfordshire have stated 
that the surgery in Henlow has three GPs in it, with a total of 5,000 patients.  
The NHS target is 1800 patients per GP so there appears to be some 
capacity at this surgery.  The NHS stated that GPs can normally take the 
demand generated from up to 50 dwellings without the need for extension of 
the surgery.  Additionally, there are two neighbouring medical centres, one at 
Arlesey and one at Hitchin, which residents at Henlow can use. 
 

3.5 With regards to possible flood risk, the site is not located within an area of 
defined flood risk, although the Council have had reports that it is prone to 
flooding / water logging.  These issues can be addressed through appropriate 
surface water attenuation techniques, such as the use of Sustainable 
Drainage Systems.  
 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 21



 
4. Pitch Redistribution 
 
4.1 Overall the potential pitch distribution can be adjusted, as shown in Table 3 

below.  This shows an increased pitch delivery of 47 permanent Gypsy and 
Traveller pitches (and 2 transit pitches). Please refer to Appendix 1 for the 
site plans, showing the suggested allocation area. Suggesting high pitch 
numbers offers the opportunity to consult on a contingency if Members 
support this and depending on the results of the consultation, gives the 
Council the opportunity to adjust pitch numbers on certain sites. 
 

4.2 Table 3: Pitch Distribution between Site Options 
 
Site Name 
 

Parish Potential Pitch Numbers 

Land rear of 197 Hitchin 
Road, Arlesey 
 

Arlesey Currently has temporary 
permission for 4 pitches.  The site 
owner has expressed his support 
for more pitches. 
Authorise 4 pitches and add 6 new 
pitches to create a total of 10 
pitches.  
Total = 10  
 

1 Old Acres, Barton Road, 
Pulloxhill 
 

Pulloxhill Currently has temporary 
permission for 8 pitches.   
Authorise 8 pitches 
Total = 8 
 

Hermitage Lane, off 
Westoning Road, 
Greenfield 
 

Flitton and  
Greenfield 

Currently 2 unauthorised, 
tolerated pitches.  Authorise both 
existing pitches. 
Total = 2 
  

Oak Tree Nursery & 
Magpie Farm, Upper 
Caldecote 
 

Northill Currently 3 pitches with 
permanent planning permission.   
The site owner has expressed 
his support for more pitches. 
Add 7 new pitches. 
Total = 7 
 

Land between Common 
Road and Myers Road, 
South of Gypsy and 
Traveller site, Potton 
 

Potton Currently 14 pitches with 
permanent planning permission.  
Propose no new pitches as the 
site is currently overcrowded.  
Allocation of this extension will 
allow reconfiguration.  
Total = 0 
 

Land south of Dunton Lane, 
Biggleswade 
 

Biggleswade Currently no development on this 
site.  Propose 10 new pitches.  
Concerns has been raised about 
the lack of a footpath into 

Agenda Item 10
Page 22



Biggleswade or Dunton, but recent 
appeal decision where a LPA 
refused a planning application for 
a Gypsy and Traveller site 
between two settlements that was 
not served by a footpath was 
overturned by an Inspector. The 
Inspector determined that whilst 
both settlements lay within 
reasonable distance from the site 
and the roads lacked footpaths, 
the road was wide enough and 
quiet enough not to deter 
pedestrians and cyclists.  
However it would be preferable to 
provide a footpath to nearby 
services if this site is allocated.  
Total = 10 
 

Land East of A6001, Hitchin 
Rd and opposite the RAF 
Henlow Camp 
 

Henlow Currently no development on this 
site.  Propose 10 new pitches.   
Total = 10 
 

Total Gypsy and Traveller Pitches 
 

47 

Sutton Storage Compound, 
south of Sutton  
 

Sutton Currently no development on this 
site.  Propose 2 new transit 
pitches.   
 

Total Transit Pitches 
 

2 

 
 

5. Conclusion and Next Steps 
 
5.1 This report seeks the recommendation of the Sustainable Communities 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee to the Director of Sustainable 
Communities in consultation with the Portfolio Holder: 
 

 (i) Approves an amended Gypsy and Traveller site list to accommodate 
land east of A6001, Hitchin Rd and opposite Henlow Camp (RAF). 
 

 (ii) Approves the pitch distribution between the site options as detailed in 
Table 3 of the report for consultation in the Preferred Sites consultation 
document.  
 

5.2 Following consideration of the revised way forward by OSC and their 
recommendation to the Director of Sustainable Communities in consultation 
with the Portfolio Holder, consultation will be undertaken on the site options 
from mid March until late April, early May. 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 23



5.3 The table below sets out the amended timescales for the DPD. 
 

 STAGE IN DPD PROCESS 
 

ESTIMATED DATE 

Period of consultation, following short listing of sites 
by Task Force and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

March – May 2010 
 

Preparation of the Draft Submission Development 
Plan Document.  

May  - July 2010 
 

Task Force consideration of the Draft Submission 
Development Plan Document.  

August 2010 
 

Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee consideration of the Draft Submission 
Development Plan Document.  

End August 2010 

Executive & Council approval of the Draft 
Submission Development Plan Document.  September 2010 

A statutory period of six weeks of public consultation 
will take place offering members of the public an 
opportunity to comment on the Draft Submission 
Development Plan Document.  

October – 
November  2010 

The Council submit the Draft Submission DPD to the 
Secretary of State. 

February 2011 

The Gypsy and Traveller DPD will be subject to an 
Examination in Public in front of an independent 
Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State. 

Spring 2011* 

The Planning Inspector publishes the binding report 
making final recommendations. 

Summer 2011* 

Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan 
Document Formally Adopted  Autumn 2011* 

* Subject to the Planning Inspectorate’s timescales. 
  
 
 
 

Appendix 1 – Site Plans 

Agenda Item 10
Page 24



Appendix 1 
 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

Date: 23 February 2010 

Subject: SITE PLANS 
 
 
Land rear of 197 Hitchin Road, Arlesey  
 

 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 25



 
1 Old Acres, Barton Road, Pulloxhill 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 26



Hermitage Lane, off Westoning Road, Greenfield 
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 27



Oak Tree Nursery & Magpie Farm, Upper Caldecote 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 28



 
Land between Common Road and Myers Road, South of Gypsy and 
Traveller site, Potton 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 29



 
Land south of Dunton Lane, Biggleswade 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 30



 
Land East of A6001, Hitchin Rd and opposite the RAF Henlow Camp 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 31



 
 
Sutton Storage Compound, south of Sutton  
 

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 32



 
 
 
Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 

Date: 23rd February 2010 

Subject: Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options Consultation 

Report of: Director of  Sustainable Communities 

Summary: The report proposes that the Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options 
document be recommended to the Portfolio Holder for approval to 
undergo consultation.  
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Lester Hannington, Principal Minerals and Waste Planning 

Officer (0300 300 6219) 
Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

The Waste Core Strategy will contribute to the agreed Council priority for “Managing 
Growth Effectively”, as set out in the Strategic Plan 2009-11. 

Financial: 

Consultants will be used for the Sustainability Appraisal of the Waste Core Strategy, 
including Strategic sites. The costs for those are set out in the existing budget for 
2009-10, and are shared between three Councils (Bedford Borough, Central 
Bedfordshire and Luton). The costs of consultation are expected to be insignificant. 
The most significant phase of costs will arise from the Examination in Public which will 
be held in 2011 or 2012. 

Legal: 

The Council is obliged to develop planning Policy documents for the control of Minerals 
and Waste Developments, according to a Local Development Scheme. This is a 
requirement under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  

Risk Management: 

 In order to be broadly in line with the contents and timetable of the Minerals and Waste 
Local Development Scheme adopted in 2009, a further stage of consultation on the 
Waste element of the Core Strategy must be undertaken, so that a Combined Core 
Strategy can be prepared and submitted by the end of 2010, or the beginning of 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 33



Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

There are no implications or changes to existing staff resources. The Waste Core 
Strategy is being prepared directly by the existing staff of the Minerals and Waste 
Planning Unit, a shared service funded by Bedford Borough Council, Central 
Bedfordshire Council, (and Luton Borough Council, for the Minerals and Waste Local 
Development Framework). 

Equalities/Human Rights: 

The Consultation document will be equally accessible to individuals and communities 
regardless of age, gender, race, ability, or sexual orientation.  There are no Human 
Rights implications.  

Community Safety: 

There are no implications for the safety of communities. 

Sustainability: 

The consultation document will be subject to Sustainability Appraisal, the results of 
which will be published with the consultation document. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1.  That the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 i.  endorse the Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options document; and  

 ii. recommend that the Executive delegate authority to the Director of 
Sustainable Communities to make any necessary minor 
amendments. 

2. That the  Waste Core  Strategy  Preferred Options document  be 
recommended to the Portfolio Holder for Planning 

3.  That the Executive be recommended to undergo public consultation on the 
Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options Consultation document according 
to statutory procedures.  

 
Where does this consultation document come from? 
 
1. 
 

The Minerals and Waste Local Development Scheme adopted in 2009 sets out 
an intention to create a combined Minerals and Waste Core Strategy, for 
submission to the Secretary of State. There have been two previous stages of 
consultations on the Minerals Core Strategy and Minerals Site Allocations Plans, 
and only one stage for the Waste Core Strategy and Site Allocations Plan. 
Before a Combined Core Strategy, (which will only include Strategic sites), is 
created for submission to the Secretary of State,  a further stage of public 
consultation is to be undertaken on the Waste element of the Core Strategy (the 
“Waste Core Strategy”). 
  

Agenda Item 11
Page 34



2. 
 

The Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options document sets out a strategy for 
waste planning over a 15 year period, based upon the circumstances of three 
Councils who “own” the Minerals and Waste Development Documents (Bedford 
Borough Council, Central Bedfordshire Council, and Luton Borough Council). It 
considers alternatives in respect of the future growth of waste to be managed; 
alternative spatial distributions for waste facilities; and alternative possible 
Strategic sites.  
 

Key Messages 
 
3. 
 

The Waste Core Strategy sets out a preference for: 
 

 
• a lower rate of growth in wastes of all kinds, compared to the 3% per annum 

growth rate set out in the adopted Regional Spatial Strategy  2008,  and  
because of more recent information and studies; 

 
• a Spatial Distribution of waste facilities, which will provide most Strategic 

facilities centrally, and smaller scale facilities more widely distributed; 

 
• identifies Rookery Pit South, and land at the former Brogborough 
landfill site, as the principal Strategic sites. 

 
• Identifies Land at Elstow North and Thorn Turn as Reserve Strategic sites. 

 
• identifies the need for additional  landfill  space for Non-Hazardous   

wastes,  

 
• identifies  both Rookery Pit South and Elstow Pit South  as necessary in 

order to  provide sufficient void space  for the disposal of Non-Hazardous 
wastes to Landfill..    

4. 
 

It should be noted that this consultation document is at present awaiting 
finalisation in respect of presentation, such as  internal images. Of most 
importance,  it focuses on planning for the future provision of land for waste 
disposal, as well as facilities for the recovery of materials from waste, in 
respect of wastes arising from households, businesses, and industry within the 
Plan area. The Plan area includes Bedford Borough, Central Bedfordshire, 
and Luton, and the Plan relates to a period of 15 years post adoption. The only 
exception is that amount of waste requiring landfilling, which includes an 
amount of waste from London, agreed through the Regional Spatial Strategy. 
After 2015 waste from London to be landfilled will be restricted to post-
treatment residues following the treatment of waste to recover the maximum of 
materials and energy, and will therefore have significantly less impacts on 
neighbours, in respect of their volume, odour, litter, and settlement following 
completion of landfilling. 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 35



 
 
 

 

Conclusion and Next Steps 
 
5. Following the approval by each of the three Councils who own the Minerals 

and Waste Development Framework, the Waste Core Strategy Preferred 
Options document will undergo public consultation, and undergo Sustainability 
Appraisal. The responses received from consultation, and the results of the 
Sustainability Appraisal, will inform the development of a combined Minerals 
and Waste Core Strategy, for its submission to the Secretary of State later in 
2010, or early 2011. The consultation document will be accompanied by a 
series of Technical Evidence Papers and an Evidence Base of supporting 
information. It is hoped that, subject to approval from all three Councils, 
consultation will begin on 12th April for a period of six weeks. 
 

 
Background Papers: (open to public inspection) 
 
Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options Consultation document 
Waste Core Strategy  Technical Evidence Papers 
Waste Core Strategy Evidence Base 
Minerals and Waste Local Development Scheme 2009 
 
Location of papers: Priory House, Chicksands 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 36



Agenda Item 11
Page 37



Agenda Item 11
Page 38



Agenda Item 11
Page 39



Agenda Item 11
Page 40



Agenda Item 11
Page 41



Agenda Item 11
Page 42



Agenda Item 11
Page 43



Agenda Item 11
Page 44



Agenda Item 11
Page 45



Agenda Item 11
Page 46



Agenda Item 11
Page 47





Agenda Item 11
Page 48



Agenda Item 11
Page 49



Agenda Item 11
Page 50



Agenda Item 11
Page 51



Agenda Item 11
Page 52



Agenda Item 11
Page 53



Agenda Item 11
Page 54



Agenda Item 11
Page 55



Agenda Item 11
Page 56



Agenda Item 11
Page 57



Agenda Item 11
Page 58



Agenda Item 11
Page 59



Agenda Item 11
Page 60



Agenda Item 11
Page 61



Agenda Item 11
Page 62



Agenda Item 11
Page 63



Agenda Item 11
Page 64



Agenda Item 11
Page 65



Agenda Item 11
Page 66



Agenda Item 11
Page 67



Agenda Item 11
Page 68



Agenda Item 11
Page 69



Agenda Item 11
Page 70



Agenda Item 11
Page 71



Agenda Item 11
Page 72



Agenda Item 11
Page 73



Agenda Item 11
Page 74



Agenda Item 11
Page 75



Agenda Item 11
Page 76



Agenda Item 11
Page 77



Agenda Item 11
Page 78



Agenda Item 11
Page 79



Agenda Item 11
Page 80



Agenda Item 11
Page 81



Agenda Item 11
Page 82



Agenda Item 11
Page 83



Agenda Item 11
Page 84



Agenda Item 11
Page 85



Agenda Item 11
Page 86



Agenda Item 11
Page 87



Agenda Item 11
Page 88



Agenda Item 11
Page 89



Agenda Item 11
Page 90



Agenda Item 11
Page 91



Agenda Item 11
Page 92



Agenda Item 11
Page 93



Agenda Item 11
Page 94



Agenda Item 11
Page 95



Agenda Item 11
Page 96



Agenda Item 11
Page 97



Agenda Item 11
Page 98



Agenda Item 11
Page 99



Agenda Item 11
Page 100



Agenda Item 11
Page 101



Agenda Item 11
Page 102



 
 
Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 23 February  2010 

Subject: Quarter 3 Performance Report 

Report of: Director of Sustainable Communities  

Summary: The report highlights the Quarter 3 performance of the Sustainable 
Communities directorate 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Ian Porter, AD Policy, Partnerships & Performance 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

The Quarterly Performance Report underpins the delivery of the Council’s Priorities 
 
Financial: 

None directly but there are possible investment decisions to improve performance 
 
Legal: 

None 
 
Risk Management: 

Areas of ongoing underperformance are a risk to both service delivery and the 
reputation of the Council 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

It is important that consideration is given to our Central Bedfordshire communities 
when considering public facing performance indicators – particularly vulnerable 
groups. 
 
Community Safety: 

An indicator measuring the Council’s performance against serious acquisitive crime, is 
contained within this report. 

Agenda Item 12
Page 103



 

Sustainability: 

None 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. That the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee:-   
 

 (a) notes and considers this report; 
 

 (b) considers any issues from this report that could form part of their 
work programme. 
 

 
Introduction 
 
1. 
 

The Council’s framework for performance management supports the delivery of 
CBC’s priorities. Those indicators that have been identified as ‘critical’ now form 
the quarterly corporate performance suite – included at Appendix A. 
 

2. 
 

The Budget Monitoring Report comes to the same meeting as the Quarterly 
Performance Report to provide a better link with performance and finance. 
 

Quarter 3 – Key Messages 
 
3. 
 

As this is only the third Performance Report for Central Bedfordshire, work is still 
on going to ensure that we can accurately report on all of the indicators 
quarterly. 
 

Conclusion and Next Steps  
 
4. 
 

This is the third Quarterly Performance Report for Central Bedfordshire 
Council.  
 

5. 
 

The Committee is asked to note and consider this report. 

7.  The Committee is asked to consider any issues from this report that could 
form part of their work programme 
 

Appendices: 
Appendix A – (Quarter 3 Performance Report) 
 
Background Papers: (open to public inspection) 
None 
 
Location of papers: Melbourne House, Bedford 

Agenda Item 12
Page 104



S
u
st
ai
n
ab
le
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

D
ir
ec
to
r
:
G
ar
y
A
ld
er
so
n

In
d
ic
a
to
rs

L
in
k
ed

to
L
A
A

U
n
it

G
o
o
d

is
O
u
tt
u
rn

0
8
/0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
1

A
p
r-
Ju
n
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
2

Ju
l-
S
ep
t
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
3

O
ct
-D
ec
0
9
Q
u
ar
te
r
4

Ja
n
-M
ar
10

Y
ea
r
to

D
at
e

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce

Ju
d
ge
m
en
t

T
ar
ge
t

0
9
/1
0

C
o
m
m
en
ts

N
I1
6
-
S
er
io
us
A
cq
ui
si
tiv
e

C
rim
e

Y
es

N
o.
P
er

1,
00
0

po
pu
la

tio
n

Lo
w

15
.1
2

(3
,8
15

cr
im
es
)

3.
24
9

(8
19

cr
im
es
)

2.
68
9

(6
78

C
rim
es
)

3.
36
1

(8
57

cr
im
es
)

-
9.
29
9

(2
35
4

cr
im
es
)

O
n
tr
ac
k

14
.2

T
hi
s
in
di
ca
to
r
m
ea
su
re
s
bu
rg
la
ry
in
a
dw
el
lin
g;

ag
gr
av
at
ed
bu
rg
la
ry
in
a
dw
el
lin
g;
ro
bb
er
y
of
bu
si
ne
ss

an
d
pe
rs
on
al
pr
op
er
ty
;t
he
ft
or
un
au
th
or
is
ed
ta
ki
ng
of
a

m
ot
or
ve
hi
cl
e;
ag
gr
av
at
ed
ve
hi
cl
e
ta
ki
ng
;a
nd
th
ef
tf
ro
m

a
ve
hi
cl
e.
W
hi
ls
tQ
3
sh
ow
s
an
in
cr
ea
se
,t
hi
s
in
di
ca
to
r

co
nt
in
ue
s
on
tr
ac
k.
T
he
C
om
m
un
ity
S
af
et
y
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip

w
ill
ex
am
in
e
th
e
in
cr
ea
se
in
m
or
e
de
ta
il
to
en
su
re
th
e

S
er
io
us
A
cq
ui
si
tiv
e
C
rim
e
pl
an
ac
tiv
ite
s
ke
ep
th
is

in
di
ca
to
r
on
tr
ac
k
to
ac
he
iv
e
ta
rg
et
.

N
I3
0
-
N
um
be
r
of
co
nv
ic
tio
ns

re
co
rd
ed
ag
ai
ns
tP
ro
lif
ic
an
d

ot
he
r
P
rio
rit
y
O
ffe
nd
er
s

Y
es

N
o.

Lo
w

19
%

R
ed
uc
tio
n

(1
48

of
fe
nc
es
)

N
A

N
A

N
A

-
N
A

-

16
%

R
ed
uc
tio
n

(8
1

of
fe
nc
es
)

D
at
a
is
su
pp
os
ed
to
be
av
ai
la
bl
e
4
m
on
th
s
af
te
r
th
e

cl
os
e
of
th
e
qu
ar
te
r.
H
ow
ev
er
,w
e
ha
ve
st
ill
no
tr
ec
ei
ve
d

Q
ua
rt
er
1
da
ta
fr
om

th
e
H
om
e
O
ffi
ce
an
d
do
no
te
xp
ec
t

th
is
un
til
ye
ar
en
d.

T
ar
ge
ti
s
16
%
re
du
ct
io
n
in
of
fe
nc
es
fr
om

ba
se
lin
e
of
96

(n
o
m
or
e
th
an
81
of
fe
nc
es
).

N
I3
2
-
R
at
e
of
re
pe
at

vi
ct
im
is
at
io
n
fo
r
th
os
e
do
m
es
tic

vi
ol
en
ce
ca
se
s
re
vi
ew
ed
by
th
e

M
ul
ti-
A
ge
nc
y
R
is
k
A
ss
es
sm
en
t

C
on
fe
re
nc
e
(M
A
R
A
C
)

Y
es

%
H
ig
h

18
%

19
%

22
%

20
%

-
20
%

O
ff
tr
ac
k

31
%

Q
3
ha
s
se
en
an
in
cr
ea
se
in
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
ca
se
s
be
in
g

he
ar
d
at
M
A
R
A
C
an
d
w
hi
ls
tt
he
nu
m
be
r
of
re
pe
at
s
ha
s

sl
ig
ht
ly
in
cr
ea
se
d
th
is
ha
s
re
m
ai
ne
d
at
a
ra
te
w
el
lb
el
ow

th
e
up
pe
r
lim
it.
F
ur
th
er
w
or
k
is
be
in
g
un
de
rt
ak
en
to

in
cr
ea
se
re
fe
rr
al
s
in
to
th
e
M
A
R
A
C
,t
hr
ou
gh
M
A
R
A
C

A
w
ar
en
es
s
T
ra
in
in
g,
w
hi
ch
co
nt
in
ue
s
to
be
ro
lle
d
ou
t

ac
ro
ss
al
lM
A
R
A
C
ag
en
ci
es
.
A
s
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
re
fe
rr
al
s

in
cr
ea
se
st
ill
,i
ti
s
an
tic
ip
at
ed
th
at
re
pe
at
ra
te
s
w
ill
ris
e

ag
ai
n
be
fo
re
th
e
en
d
of
th
e
fin
an
ci
al
ye
ar
.

T
he
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
pl
an
ni
ng

ap
pl
ic
an
ts
sa
tis
fie
d
w
ith
th
e

se
rv
ic
e
re
ce
iv
ed
fr
om

th
e

P
la
nn
in
g
de
pa
rt
m
en
t

N
o

%
H
ig
h

N
A

N
A

N
A

78
%

-
78
%

-
82
%

N
ew

su
rv
ey
fo
r
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tM
an
ag
em
en
tc
om
m
en
ce
d

on
1
S
ep
te
m
be
r
20
09
so
th
e
fir
st
re
su
lts
ar
e
re
po
rt
ed
in

Q
3.
T
he
re
tu
rn
ra
te
is
cu
rr
en
tly
lo
w
w
ith
72
ap
pl
ic
an
ts

m
ak
in
g
re
sp
on
se
ou
to
f6
30
se
nt
ou
t.
T
hi
s
nu
m
be
r
is

lik
el
y
to
in
cr
ea
se
in
fu
tu
re
m
on
th
s
an
d
w
or
k
w
ill
be

ca
rr
ie
d
ou
tt
o
de
te
rm
in
e
w
he
re
re
sp
on
se
s
ar
e
no
tb
ei
ng

m
ad
e
eg
ar
ch
ite
ct
of
fic
es
m
ak
in
g
m
ul
tip
le
ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns

bu
to
nl
y
on
e
su
rv
ey
re
sp
on
se
.

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
H
o
ld
er
S
u
st
ai
n
ab
le
D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t
-
C
ll
r
T
o
m
N
ic
o
ls

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
H
o
ld
er
fo
r
S
a
fe
r
an
d
S
tr
o
n
ge
r
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
-
C
ll
r
D
av
id
M
cV
ic
ar

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
H
o
ld
er
E
co
n
o
m
ic
G
ro
w
th
an
d
R
eg
en
er
at
io
n
-
C
ll
r
K
en
C
M
at
th
ew
s

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
C
om
m
un
iti
es

Q
tr
3
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
R
ep
or
t

Agenda Item 12
Page 105



In
d
ic
a
to
rs

L
in
k
ed

to
L
A
A

U
n
it

G
o
o
d

is
O
u
tt
u
rn

0
8
/0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
1

A
p
r-
Ju
n
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
2

Ju
l-
S
ep
t
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
3

O
ct
-D
ec
0
9
Q
u
ar
te
r
4

Ja
n
-M
ar
10

Y
ea
r
to

D
at
e

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce

Ju
d
ge
m
en
t

T
ar
ge
t

0
9
/1
0

C
o
m
m
en
ts

Q
ua
lit
y
of
ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns

ap
pr
ov
ed

N
o

N
o.

H
ig
h

N
A

N
A

N
A

N
A

-
N
A

-
N
T

A
s
th
is
is
a
ne
w
in
di
ca
to
r,
a
ba
se
lin
e
is
be
in
g
es
ta
bl
is
he
d

be
fo
re
a
ta
rg
et
is
se
t.
C
om
m
en
ce
m
en
ts
ch
ed
ul
ed
fo
r

Q
4.
B
ui
ld
in
g
fo
r
Li
fe
is
a
sc
he
m
e
ru
n
by
C
A
B
E

(C
om
m
is
si
on
fo
r
A
rc
hi
te
ct
ur
e
an
d
B
ui
lt
E
nv
iro
nm
en
t)
to

as
se
ss
th
e
de
si
gn
qu
al
ity
of
de
ve
lo
pm
en
ta
cr
os
s
a
ra
ng
e

of
cr
ite
ria
.

P
rin
ci
pa
lR
oa
d
ne
tw
or
k

re
su
rf
ac
ed
.(
P
rin
ci
pa
lr
oa
ds
ar
e

de
fin
ed
as
A
ro
ad
s
on
ly
,

re
pr
es
en
tin
g
12
5k
m
of
th
e
ro
ad

ne
tw
or
k)

N
o

km
H
ig
h

N
A

0
7

0.
71

-
7.
41

-
N
T

T
hi
s
in
di
ca
to
r
re
fle
ct
s
th
e
pr
og
re
ss
w
ith
th
e
st
ru
ct
ur
al

m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
In
Q
1
w
or
k
fo
cu
ss
ed
on
no
n-

pr
in
ci
pa
lr
oa
ds
.D
ue
to
w
ea
th
er
co
nd
iti
on
s,
Q
2
se
es
th
at

la
rg
es
ta
ch
ie
ve
m
en
to
ft
he
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
D
ue
to
w
in
te
r

m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
pr
og
ra
m
m
es
th
e
le
ve
lo
fs
ur
fa
ci
ng
in
Q
3

w
as
re
st
ric
te
d.

N
on
P
rin
ci
pa
lC
la
ss
ifi
ed
R
oa
d

ne
tw
or
k
re
su
rf
ac
ed

(N
on
pr
in
ci
pa
lr
oa
ds
ar
e
B
&
C

ro
ad
s
on
ly
)

N
o

km
H
ig
h

N
A

5.
5

15
.1

4.
9

-
25
.5

-
N
T

T
hi
s
in
di
ca
to
r
re
fle
ct
s
th
e
pr
og
re
ss
w
ith
th
e
st
ru
ct
ur
al

m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
In
Q
1
w
or
k
fo
cu
ss
ed
on
no
n-

pr
in
ci
pa
lr
oa
ds
.P
oo
r
w
ea
th
er
(e
.g
.r
ai
n,
sn
ow

et
c)
ha
s

an
ad
ve
rs
e
af
fe
ct
on
ho
w
qu
ic
kl
y
re
su
rf
ac
in
g
w
or
k
ca
n

be
pr
og
re
ss
ed
.
T
he
m
os
ts
ig
ni
fic
an
to
ut
pu
ts
fo
r

re
su
rf
ac
in
g
ar
e
th
er
ef
or
e
de
liv
er
ed
in
Q
2.
D
ue
to
th
e

hi
gh
le
ve
lo
fr
es
ur
fa
ci
ng
ca
rr
ie
d
ou
ti
n
Q
2,
th
is
di
d
no
t

ne
ed
to
be
re
pl
ic
at
ed
.
T
he
W
in
te
r
m
ai
ne
te
na
nc
e

pr
og
ra
m
m
e
al
so
ha
d
an
ef
fe
ct
on
th
e
am
ou
nt
of
ro
ad

re
su
rf
ac
ed
.

T
he
le
ng
th
of
B
ro
ad
s
=
72
.2
km

an
d
C
ro
ad
s
=

33
6.
6k
m
.

R
oa
d
ac
ci
de
nt
ca
su
al
tie
s
(A
ll

pe
op
le
ki
lle
d
or
se
rio
us
ly

in
ju
re
d)

N
o

N
o.

Lo
w

N
A

37
46

28
-

11
1

O
ff
tr
ac
k

12
1

T
he
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
da
ta
in
th
is
ta
bl
e
ha
s
be
en

di
sa
gg
re
ga
te
d
an
d
re
la
te
s
to
C
B
C
on
ly
.H
ow
ev
er
,t
he

na
tio
na
li
nd
ic
at
or
re
la
te
s
to
th
e
ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
ar
ea
s
of

B
ed
fo
rd
,C
en
tr
al
B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
an
d
Lu
to
n
up
un
til
M
ar
ch

20
10
.

E
ng
in
ee
rin
g
an
d
en
fo
rc
em
en
ts
ol
ut
io
ns
ha
ve
pr
od
uc
ed
a

si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
re
du
ct
io
n
in
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
ac
ci
de
nt
s,

ho
w
ev
er
it
w
ill
be
ch
al
le
ng
in
g
to
m
ee
tt
he
ta
rg
et
.

E
nf
or
ce
m
en
tp
ro
gr
am
m
es
w
ill
co
nt
in
ue
,b
ut
th
e
ne
w

fo
cu
s
w
ill
be
on
ed
uc
at
io
n
ca
m
pa
ig
ns
to
ch
an
ge
dr
iv
er

be
ha
vi
ou
r.

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
C
om
m
un
iti
es

Q
tr
3
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
R
ep
or
t

Agenda Item 12
Page 106



In
d
ic
a
to
rs

L
in
k
ed

to
L
A
A

U
n
it

G
o
o
d

is
O
u
tt
u
rn

0
8
/0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
1

A
p
r-
Ju
n
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
2

Ju
l-
S
ep
t
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
3

O
ct
-D
ec
0
9
Q
u
ar
te
r
4

Ja
n
-M
ar
10

Y
ea
r
to

D
at
e

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce

Ju
d
ge
m
en
t

T
ar
ge
t

0
9
/1
0

C
o
m
m
en
ts

R
oa
d
ac
ci
de
nt
ca
su
al
tie
s

(C
hi
ld
re
n
un
de
r
16
ki
lle
d
or

se
rio
us
ly
in
ju
re
d)

N
o

N
o.

Lo
w

N
A

2
4

2
-

8
O
ff
tr
ac
k

9

T
he
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
da
ta
in
th
is
ta
bl
e
ha
s
be
en

di
sa
gg
re
ga
te
d
an
d
re
la
te
s
to
C
B
C
on
ly
.H
ow
ev
er
,t
he

na
tio
na
li
nd
ic
at
or
re
la
te
s
to
th
e
ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
ar
ea
s
of

B
ed
fo
rd
,C
en
tr
al
B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
an
d
Lu
to
n
up
un
til
M
ar
ch

20
10
.

E
ng
in
ee
rin
g
an
d
en
fo
rc
em
en
ts
ol
ut
io
ns
ha
ve
pr
od
uc
ed
a

si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
re
du
ct
io
n
in
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
ac
ci
de
nt
s,

ho
w
ev
er
it
w
ill
be
ch
al
le
ng
in
g
to
m
ee
tt
he
ta
rg
et
.

E
nf
or
ce
m
en
tp
ro
gr
am
m
es
w
ill
co
nt
in
ue
,b
ut
th
e
ne
w

fo
cu
s
w
ill
be
on
ed
uc
at
io
n
ca
m
pa
ig
ns
to
ch
an
ge
dr
iv
er

be
ha
vi
ou
r.

H
ig
hw
ay
s
E
m
er
ge
nc
ie
s

re
sp
on
de
d
to
w
ith
in
2
ho
ur
s.

E
xa
m
pl
es
in
cl
ud
e
oi
ls
pi
lls
,

ro
ad
tr
af
fic
ac
ci
de
nt
s,
ca
lla
ps
ed

m
ai
ns
et
c.

N
o

%
H
ig
h

99
.2
0%

99
.1
0%

99
.4
5%

98
.1
0%

-
99
.1
1%

O
n
tr
ac
k

95
%

Lo
ca
li
nd
ic
at
or
us
ed
to
m
an
ag
e
em
er
ge
nc
y
re
sp
on
se

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
.
T
he
re
w
er
e
14
53
re
qu
es
ts
of
th
is
na
tu
re

in
08
/0
9.
T
he
re
ha
ve
be
en
11
63
re
qu
es
ts
to
da
te
.

%
of
cu
st
om
er
re
qu
es
ts
fo
r

se
rv
ic
e
in
ve
st
ig
at
ed
an
d/
or

cl
os
ed
ou
t-
as
re
co
rd
ed
on

w
ee
kl
y
H
ig
hw
ay
s
M
em
be
rs

B
ul
le
tin

N
o

%
H
ig
h

99
.3
4%

99
.5
3%

99
.4
0%

99
.4
0%

-
99
.5
0%

O
n
tr
ac
k

99
%

Lo
ca
li
nd
ic
at
or
us
ed
to
m
an
ag
e
re
sp
on
se
to
cu
st
om
er
s.

W
e
re
ce
iv
e
ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y
17
00
re
qu
es
ts
fo
r
se
rv
ic
e
pe
r

m
on
th
th
ro
ug
h
th
e
H
el
pd
es
k.

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
C
om
m
un
iti
es

Q
tr
3
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
R
ep
or
t

Agenda Item 12
Page 107



In
d
ic
a
to
rs

L
in
k
ed

to
L
A
A

U
n
it

G
o
o
d

is
O
u
tt
u
rn

0
8
/0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
1

A
p
r-
Ju
n
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
2

Ju
l-
S
ep
t
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
3

O
ct
-D
ec
0
9
Q
u
ar
te
r
4

Ja
n
-M
ar
10

Y
ea
r
to

D
at
e

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce

Ju
d
ge
m
en
t

T
ar
ge
t

0
9
/1
0

C
o
m
m
en
ts

P
ro
g
re
ss
ag
ai
n
st
L
D
F
-
N
o
rt
h

C
or
e
S
tr
at
eg
y
an
d

D
ev
el
op
m
en
tM
an
ag
em
en
t

D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP
la
n
D
oc
um
en
t

S
ite
A
llo
ca
tio
ns
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t

P
la
n
D
oc
um
en
t

G
yp
sy
an
d
T
ra
ve
lle
rs

D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP
la
n
D
oc
um
en
t

P
ro
g
re
ss
ag
ai
n
st
L
D
F
-
S
o
u
th

C
or
e
S
tr
at
eg
y
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t

P
la
n
D
oc
um
en
t

S
ite
A
llo
ca
tio
ns
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t

P
la
n
D
oc
um
en
t

G
yp
sy
an
d
T
ra
ve
lle
rs

D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP
la
n
D
oc
um
en
t

D
ev
el
op
m
en
tM
an
ag
em
en
t

P
ol
ic
ie
s
D
ev
el
op
m
en
tP
la
n

D
oc
um
en
t

N
o

-
-

N
A

N
A

N
A

N
A

-
N
A

O
n
tr
ac
k

O
n
tr
ac
k

O
ff
tr
ac
k

O
n
tr
ac
k

O
n
tr
ac
k

O
n
tr
ac
k

O
n
tr
ac
k

N
T

C
B
C
ha
s
2
Lo
ca
lD
ev
el
op
m
en
tF
ra
m
ew
or
ks
(L
D
F
s)
-

on
e
fo
r
th
e
fo
rm
er
M
B
D
C
ar
ea
an
d
a
jo
in
to
ne
fo
r
th
e

S
B
D
C
an
d
Lu
to
n
ar
ea
.T
he
Lo
ca
lD
ev
el
op
m
en
tS
ch
em
e

(L
D
S
)
is
a
tim
et
ab
le
of
im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n
fo
r
th
e
LD
F

do
cu
m
en
ts
an
d
is
us
ed
to
m
on
ito
r
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
.F
or
th
e

fo
rm
er
M
B
D
C
ar
ea
th
e
LD
F
is
pr
og
re
ss
in
g
in

ac
co
rd
an
ce
w
ith
th
e
ag
re
ed
LD
S
ex
ce
pt
fo
r
th
e
G
yp
sy

an
d
T
ra
ve
lle
r
D
P
D
w
hi
ch
is
ru
nn
in
g
9
m
on
th
s
be
hi
nd

tim
et
ab
le
.
In
th
e
fo
rm
er
S
B
D
C
ar
ea
th
e
jo
in
tC
or
e

S
tr
at
eg
y
w
ith
Lu
to
n
is
be
in
g
pr
og
re
ss
ed
to
tim
et
ab
le
,

ho
w
ev
er
ot
he
r
D
P
D
s
(D
ev
el
op
m
en
tM
an
ag
em
en
t

P
ol
ic
ie
s,
S
ite
A
llo
ca
tio
ns
an
d
G
yp
sy
an
d
T
ra
ve
lle
r

P
ol
ic
ie
s)
ar
e
cu
rr
en
tly
ar
ou
nd
4
m
on
th
s
be
hi
nd
as
w
or
k

fo
cu
se
s
on
de
liv
er
in
g
th
e
C
or
e
S
tr
at
eg
y,
th
ou
gh
th
is
w
ill

be
ca
ug
ht
up
w
ith
in
th
e
ne
xt
12
m
on
th
s
be
fo
re
an
y
ke
y

m
ile
st
on
es
ar
is
e.

P
ro
gr
es
s
ag
ai
ns
tL
oc
al

T
ra
ns
po
rt
P
la
n
3
(L
T
P
3)

N
o

-
-

N
A

N
A

N
A

-
-

N
A

-
N
T

'F
in
al
gu
id
an
ce
ha
s
be
en
re
le
as
ed
.
E
xe
cu
tiv
e
ag
re
ed
a

w
ay
fo
rw
ar
d
in
S
ep
te
m
be
r
20
09
.
C
en
tr
al
B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire

O
ffi
ce
rs
ar
e
no
w
w
or
ki
ng
on
de
ta
ile
d
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
ns

th
ro
ug
h
20
10
re
ad
y
fo
r
su
bm
is
si
on
to
th
e
Lo
ca
l

T
ra
ns
po
rt
P
la
n
O
ve
rv
ie
w
an
d
S
cr
ut
in
y
in
la
te
20
10
.
It
is

pr
op
os
ed
th
at
fu
ll
C
ou
nc
il
w
ill
be
m
ak
in
g
a
de
ci
si
on
on

th
is
in
M
ar
ch
20
11
.'

N
I
19
1
-
K
g
of
R
es
id
ua
l

H
ou
se
ho
ld
w
as
te
pe
r

ho
us
eh
ol
d

N
o

K
g

Lo
w

N
A

13
6.
8

13
9.
5

A
va
ila
bl
e
Q
4

-
27
6.
3

O
n
tr
ac
k

54
0

D
ue
to
th
e
na
tu
re
of
da
ta
co
lle
ct
io
n,
ve
rif
ic
at
io
n
an
d
us
e

of
th
e
go
ve
rn
m
en
td
at
ab
as
e
W
as
te
D
at
aF
lo
w
,r
ep
or
tin
g

of
th
e
w
as
te
in
di
ca
to
rs
ar
e
on
e
qu
ar
te
r
be
hi
nd
.
Q
2-
S
til
l

on
tr
ac
k
to
hi
tt
ar
ge
t.
Q
3
an
d
Q
4
m
ay
be
ef
fe
ct
ed
by

di
sr
up
tio
n
to
co
lle
ct
io
ns
ov
er
C
hr
is
tm
as
an
d
re
si
de
nt
s

di
po
si
ng
of
re
cy
cl
ab
le
s
in
th
ei
r
re
si
du
al
bi
n.

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
C
om
m
un
iti
es

Q
tr
3
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
R
ep
or
t

Agenda Item 12
Page 108



In
d
ic
a
to
rs

L
in
k
ed

to
L
A
A

U
n
it

G
o
o
d

is
O
u
tt
u
rn

0
8
/0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
1

A
p
r-
Ju
n
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
2

Ju
l-
S
ep
t
0
9

Q
u
ar
te
r
3

O
ct
-D
ec
0
9
Q
u
ar
te
r
4

Ja
n
-M
ar
10

Y
ea
r
to

D
at
e

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce

Ju
d
ge
m
en
t

T
ar
ge
t

0
9
/1
0

C
o
m
m
en
ts

N
I1
92
-
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of

ho
us
eh
ol
d
w
as
te
se
nt
fo
r

re
us
e,
re
cy
cl
in
g
&
co
m
po
st
in
g

N
o

%
H
ig
h

N
A

54
.2
%

52
.0
%

A
va
ila
bl
e
Q
4

-
53
.0
%

O
n
tr
ac
k

50
.0
%

D
ue
to
th
e
na
tu
re
of
da
ta
co
lle
ct
io
n,
ve
rif
ic
at
io
n
an
d
us
e

of
th
e
go
ve
rn
m
en
td
at
ab
as
e
W
as
te
D
at
aF
lo
w
,r
ep
or
tin
g

of
th
e
w
as
te
in
di
ca
to
rs
ar
e
on
e
qu
ar
te
r
be
hi
nd
.
It
is

en
tir
el
y
no
rm
al
&
ex
pe
ct
ed
th
at
th
e
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
va
lu
e
fo
r

N
I1
92
w
ill
de
cr
ea
se
as
th
e
ye
ar
go
es
on
.Q
2-
S
til
lo
n

tr
ac
k
to
hi
tt
ar
ge
t.
Q
3
an
d
Q
4
m
ay
be
ef
fe
ct
ed
by

di
sr
up
tio
n
to
co
lle
ct
io
ns
ov
er
C
hr
is
tm
as
an
d
re
si
de
nt
s

di
sp
os
in
g
of
re
cy
cl
in
g
in
th
ei
r
re
si
du
al
bi
n.

N
I1
93
-
P
er
ce
nt
ag
e
of

m
un
ic
ip
al
w
as
te
la
nd
fil
le
d

Y
es

%
Lo
w

48
.3
4%

37
.1
0%

41
.0
0%

A
va
ila
bl
e
Q
4

-
39
.0
0%

O
n
tr
ac
k

45
.0
0%

D
ue
to
th
e
na
tu
re
of
da
ta
co
lle
ct
io
n,
ve
rif
ic
at
io
n
an
d
us
e

of
th
e
go
ve
rn
m
en
td
at
ab
as
e
W
as
te
D
at
aF
lo
w
,r
ep
or
tin
g

of
th
e
w
as
te
in
di
ca
to
rs
ar
e
on
e
qu
ar
te
r
be
hi
nd
.
It
is

en
tir
el
y
no
rm
al
&
ex
pe
ct
ed
th
at
th
e
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
va
lu
e
fo
r

N
I1
93
w
ill
in
cr
ea
se
as
th
e
ye
ar
pr
og
re
ss
es
.M
uc
h
lo
w
er

in
fir
st
tw
o
qu
ar
te
rs
du
e
to
a
hi
gh
vo
lu
m
e
of
E
fW

di
ve
rs
io
n.
S
til
le
xp
ec
te
d
to
be
w
ith
in
ta
rg
et
an
d
w
el
l

w
ith
in
LA
A
2
T
ar
ge
to
f5
0.
62
%
fo
r
09
/1
0

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
C
om
m
un
iti
es

Q
tr
3
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
R
ep
or
t

Agenda Item 12
Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 23 February 2010 

Subject: Quarter 3 Budget Management Report 

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Communities 

Summary: The report sets out the Budget Management position as at September 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Gary Alderson, Director 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
 
Financial: 

The Financial implications are set out in the report 
 
Legal: 

None 
 
Risk Management: 

The Director is assessing the risks and management actions. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

The effect of any proposed efficiency savings will need to be considered as part of the 
Equality Impact Assessments particularly in identified high risk areas. 
 
Community Safety: 

None 
 
Sustainability: 

None 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 111



 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. that the Committee notes and considers this report  
 

2. that the Committee considers any issues from this report that could form part of 
their work programme 
 

 
Introduction 
 
1. 
 

The report sets out the financial position as at the end of December 2009 and 
the forecast position at year end. Table A shows the net revenue position.  

2. 
 

Members are aware that this is a relatively high risk budget as it is the first one 
produced by Central Bedfordshire and it is for this reason that robust 
monitoring has been in place since day one. The Quarterly Performance 
Report will be presented to the Committee at the same time as this Budget 
Management Report to provide a better link between performance and finance 
issues. 
 

Quarter 2 – Key Messages 
 
3. 
 

The net favourable revenue position as at December is £221,000.  

Conclusion and Next Steps  
 
4. 
 

The Committee is asked to note and consider this report. 

5.  The Committee is also asked to consider any issues from this report that could 
form part of its work programme. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – (December Budget Management Report) 

Agenda Item 13
Page 112



APPENDIX A 

First Draft          Date   15/01/10                     
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

Budget Management Report for the period as at 31st 
December 2009         

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

Finance Manager on behalf of Director of Sustainable 
Communities 

PURPOSE: To provide information on the budget position at 31st 
December 2009 to enable decisions to be taken on 
resource allocation and service delivery. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Service Management Team/Portfolio 
Holder/Executive is recommended to: 
 
a) Note the latest budget projections for the year and 
the associated service implications. 

 
b) Agree to any management actions proposed at 
paragraphs 2.4 and determine whether any other 
changes to service provision need to be made in 
the light of these.  

 
c) Note budget virements since last report. 

 
 

 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The report sets out the financial position to 31st December 2009 and the latest 
forecast position at year end. Table A shows the net revenue position, Table B 
the movements in revenue forecast from the prior month and Table C the 
capital position. 

 

2.0 Executive Summary Revenue 

2.1 The full year forecast position for Sustainable Communities is £0.221m (previous 
month £146k) under budget on a net revenue budget of £39.258m. This 
represents a favourable variation of £75k in the forecast from last month.  

2.2 Major movements in the year to date have been: 

• The previous adverse forecast variation related to the budgeted use of £0.5m 
of transition funds throughout the directorate. During the budget process the 
sum was allocated with the intention of utilising it in 2009/10 to enable 
harmonisation of processes and systems during the year.  

• Due to the adverse winter spells Highways Division have indicated that the 
current budget for winter maintenance and the contingency previously set 
aside has now been exhausted. The cost of the last snow spell is estimated at 
£450k. Therefore it is projected that each future incident of a bad spell of 
snow will cost an estimated £450k cost pressure overspend to the budget .  

• In addition it should be noted that there are budgetary pressures on employee 
allowances (£220k) and travel (£70k) which are currently being met from an 
offsetting overperformance in achieving vacancy targets and an actual pay 

Agenda Item 13
Page 113



 

award 1.5% below budgeted levels (£290k). No provision was made for these 
elements during the budget setting process. 

• To date, savings of £325k have been specifically identified by AD’s to meet 
this shortfall, primarily through delaying recruitment to vacant posts which has 
implications for the quality of service delivery provided.  

• An additional overspend is in the Passenger Transport service and relates to 
the support of public bus routes. This overspend represents 1.8% on a net 
budget of £4.9m and has arisen due to the original disaggregated budget not 
matching the operational reality of the service. The service prepared a full 
paper for Executive in September 2009 setting out options as to how this 
overspend could be tackled by reducing the level of subsidy to bus operators. 
At it’s October 2009 meeting, the Executive resolved to make the full year 
savings of £68,000, with a £17,000 saving in 2009/10.  

• The forecast includes an additional saving of £250k relating to a reduction in 
the Highways Area Team budget. This was approved by Executive 
Committee on 8th December 2009.  

• The forecast now includes an anticipated £90k saving relating to amounts 
paid to bus companies for concessionary fares along with additional vacancy 
savings within Highways. 

• Finally, it should be noted that October saw several key contracts receive 
their annual inflation and this has been incorporated in the forecast. 
Provisional allocation of the HPDG is set at £1.395m, current budget 
commitments total the bulk of this amount. 

• Full year fee income forecast for Building Control is reduce by £100k 
compared to budget due to anticipated reduction in actual income bringing 
about an additional budget pressure.  

2.3   Budget realignment work continues with Assistant Directors along with HOS 
closely reviewing their budgets. Significant progress has been made in recent 
months in this regard and future reports will reflect this. In addition, actual 
income postings have been limited to date due to processing problems in the 
new income system. There is currently £1.2m of unreconciled income within the 
system which particularly affects Development Management actual income 
postings making income forecasting difficult. Finance and Planning are 
currently working together to provide an estimate of how much Development 
Management income is currently outstanding and are liaising with Revenues to 
resolve the situation. 

2.4 Key Management Actions 

  

• AD’s are continuing to review budgets in order to identify potential in year 
savings to compensate for the lack of transition funds. To date £325k has 
been identified.  

• All budget managers will need to continue to monitor employee expenditure 
to ensure that performance is maintained. Particular care continues to be 
taken with regard to the use of interim staff. A full review of the use of interim 
staff has been undertaken to ensure all such appointments remain 
necessary and where practical have been engaged through Carlisle 
Managed Solutions, the Council’s preferred supplier. 

• Finance to consult with AD’s and HOS’s to ensure that the base budget and 
actual expenditure are shown correctly on SAP. 

Agenda Item 13
Page 114



 

 

   

3.0 Executive Summary Capital 

(a) The 2009/10 capital programme has been approved by Executive 
Committee.  

 

 

4.0 Detailed Revenue Analysis by Operational Group  

Table A – Revenue Actuals to date and Forecast Year End position 

Table A - Net Revenue Position Annual 
Budget 

Profiled 
Budget 

Actual spend Variance December 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance 

              
Net Expenditure £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Director for Sustainable 
Communities 

            

Director of Sustainable Commun 826 619 1,164 545 766 -60 

Economic Growth & Regeneration 1,147 860 915 55 1,112 -35 

Highways 11,672 8,755 8,289 (466) 11,509 -163 
Planning and Dev Strategy 2,941 2,206 2,526 320 2,892 -49 

Waste 16,988 12,741 12,118 (623) 17,056 68 
Development Management 2,258 1,694 1,654 (40) 2,240 -18 

Community Safety & Public Prot 3,141 2,356 2,195 (161) 3,177 36 

BEaR Project 285 214 -46 (260) 285 0 

Total Director of Sustainable 
Communities 

39,258 29,445 28,815 (630) 39,037 (221) 

 

 

4.1 Table B – Movement on Forecast Year End Position (to previous month) 

Table B - Movement in Forecast Nov 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Dec 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Movement 
in 

Forecast 

        
Net Expenditure £000 £000 £000 

Director for Sustainable 
Communities 

      

Director of Sustainable Commun 766 766 0 

Economic Growth & Regeneration 1,147 1,112 -35 

Highways 11,608 11,509 -99 
Planning and Dev Strategy 2,938 2,892 -46 

Waste 17,056 17,056 0 
Development Management 2,135 2,240 105 

Community Safety & Public Prot 3,177 3,177 0 

BEaR Project 285 285 0 

Total Director of Sustainable 
Communities 

39,112 39,037 (75) 

Agenda Item 13
Page 115



 

 

 

 

4.2 Detailed Commentary on Director and Service Development team 

(a) Variances over £50k – none identified. 

(b) Service Implications – none identified. 

(c)  Management Actions – none identified. 

 

4.3 Detailed Commentary on Economic Growth and Regeneration 

(a) Variances over £50k – none identified. 

(b) Service Implications – none identified. 

(c)  Management Actions – none identified. 

 

4.4 Detailed Commentary on Highways 

(a) Variances over £50k  

    - Passenger Transport £90k (1.8%) on a net budget of £4.9m. This is 
due to the reality of existing service provision being different to the 
original disaggregated budget estimate. 

    - Highways Area Team saving in maintenance costs (£250k).     

    - Concessionary Fares anticipated saving in payments to bus operators 
(£90k). 

    - Budgeted use of transition funds (£125k) will not be possible, however 
compensatory savings have been identified to mitigate against this. 

  -  Potential additional overspend for each future bad spell of snow 
estimated at £450k. 

 

(b) Service Implications  

    - Area Team saving affects Category 2 repairs and low level 
maintenance. 

 

(c)  Management Actions 

- The service prepared a full paper for Executive in September 2009 
setting out options as to how this overspend could be tackled by 
reducing the level of subsidy to bus operators. At it’s October 2009 
meeting, the Executive resolved to make the full year savings of 
£68,000, with a £17,000 saving in 2009/10.  

-  Executive Committee in December has approved the Area Team 
saving. 

-  Potential overspend due to possibility of additional bad snow spells 
needs to be accurately estimated. This will enable the council to 
correctly anticipate the potential level of additional funding that may be 
required. 

Agenda Item 13
Page 116



 

 

 

4.5 Detailed Commentary on Planning and Development Strategy 

(a) Variances over £50k – none identified. 

(b) Service Implications – none identified. 

(c)  Management Actions – none identified. 

 

4.6 Detailed Commentary on Waste 

(a) Variances over £50k 

- Budgeted use of transition funds (£176k) will not be possible. 

- LAA Grant for Waste not now anticipated. 

 

(b) Service Implications – none identified. 

(c)  Management Actions 

- Finance have consulted with AD Waste to review budgets in order to 
identify potential in year savings to compensate for the lack of transition 
funds. Detailed work has been done on establishing the correct budget 
and actual position to date, and now the contract inflation rates are 
known, a more accurate forecast to year end has been made.  

 

4.7 Detailed Commentary on Development Management 

(a) Variances over £50k 

-     Full year fee income forecast for Building Control is reduce by £100k 
compared to budget due to anticipated reduction in actual income 
bringing about an additional budget pressure 

-     Budgeted use of transition funds (£93k) will not be possible. 

(b) Service Implications  

(c)  Management Actions 

- Finance have consulted with AD Development Management to review 
budgets in order to identify potential in year savings to compensate for 
the lack of transition funds. Savings have been identified through staff 
vacancies and by removing two consultants; however detailed work is 
ongoing to clarify income to date to enable an accurate outturn forecast. 

 

4.8 Detailed Commentary on Community Safety and Public Protection 

(a) Variances over £50k 

- Budgeted use of transition funds (£56k) will not be possible. 

(b) Service Implications  

(c)  Management Actions 

- Finance have consulted with AD Community Safety and Public 
Protection to review budgets in order to identify potential in year savings 

Agenda Item 13
Page 117



 

to compensate for the lack of transition funds. Further work is being 
carried out with the intention of minimising the forecast overspend. 

 

 

4.9  Detailed Commentary on Bear Project 

(a) Variances over £50k – none identified. 

(b) Service Implications – none identified. 

(c)  Management Actions – none identified. 

 

 

5.0 Revenue Virement Requests 

There has been two virements to date in the net sum of £78k. This related to the 
transfer of a CRB co-ordinator post from the Transport Team to Human Resources 
(£25k) and the transfer of grant income relating to domestic violence from Adult 
Social Care (£53k). 

For information, it should be noted that several technical adjustments have been 
actioned in order to more accurately realign legacy budgets to Central Bedfordshire 
operational requirements. This process is ongoing. The key adjustments actioned to 
date relate to the cascading of payroll budgets to services and movements between 
AD areas. It is anticipated that all additional requirements will fall within the technical 
adjustment definition, but any that do not will be reported here. 

 

 

 

6.0 Key Risks and Cost Drivers 

Cost Driver Target Current 
Performance 

Previously 
Reported 
Performance 

Comment 

Tonnes of 
refuse sent to 
landfill. 

Data not yet 
available. 

Apr – Sept 09 
25,728 
tonnes 

N/A A key indicator 
within Waste as it is 
influenced by waste 
minimisation and 
diversion initiatives. 
Any waste sent to 
landfill incurs £40/ 
tonne landfill tax 
charge on top of 
disposal costs. 
Landfill tax set to  
rise by an 
additional £8 per 
tonne cumulatively 
over the next 3 
years 

Directorate 
achievement of 
employee 

Full 
achievement 
of 

6.6% 
assuming 
pay award of 

N/A 39% of the 
Directorate’s 
budget relates to 

Agenda Item 13
Page 118



 

costs budgets. Directorate’s 
5% vacancy 
target. 

1% and 
including use 
of contractors 
to cover 
vacancies. 

payroll costs 
therefore 
achievement of 
vacancy targets is a 
good indicator of 
likely outturn. 

Achievement of 
Planning and 
Building 
Control income 
targets. 

 Data quality 
issues 
currently 
being 
rectified. 
(expected 
resolution 
November) 

N/A The current 
economic climate 
makes close 
monitoring of these 
volatile budgets  
essential. 

 

 

6.1 Potential unachievable budgeted income within Waste. Income relating to LAA 
performance targets for 2008/09 may not be realised due to targets being 
expressed in tonnage recycled rather than as a % of waste recycled. An appeal 
has been submitted, as the target was only missed because of our over 
achievement of waste minimisation targets. 

6.2 Continued close monitoring of all fees and charges will be required to take 
account of the effects of the economic downturn and ensure budgets are 
attainable. Further reconciliation of unallocated income is required in addition to 
close working between finance and services. 

6.3 Highways contract requires to be carefully monitored to ensure that Amey 
forecast fully takes account commitments as well as completed works. Potential 
additional expenditure overspend 

 

7.0 Achieving Efficiency Savings 

Sustainable Communities was budgeted to achieve £2.1m of efficiency savings in 
2009/10. Current forecasts indicate that £2.1m of these efficiencies will be achieved, 
relating to vacancy savings (£808k), Waste and recycling (£833k), and supplies and 
services (£478k). 

 

8.0 Reserves Position 

The reserve position has been confirmed but further review is required.  

 

9.0 Carry forward Requests 

None. 

 

10.0 Detailed Capital Analysis 

See Executive Summary 3.0. 

 

11.0 Workforce Data 

Agenda Item 13
Page 119



 

Sustainable Communities AD Area 

Original 
Budgeted 

FTE 

Fully funded posts 
not in original 

employee budget Total FTE 
          
     
Community Safety Comm Safety 94.00 3.00 97.00 

Development Mgt 
Development 
Mg 136.00 7.50 143.50 

Economic Growth 
Economic 
Growth 14.00 3.50 17.50 

Highways Highways 87.00 3.00 90.00 
Service Development Service Dev 15.00  15.00 
Strategic Planning Plan&Dev Strat 67.00  67.00 
Waste Waste 28.00  28.00 
SC Director incl. BEaR 
project Sust Comm'ty 2.00 6.00 8.00 
    443.00 23.00 466.00 
 

The above table reconciles the original budgeted employee FTEs for Sustainable 
Communities to the current establishment. The movements have all been financed 
either from existing budgeted resources or through additional external funding. It 
should be noted that 39FTEs within Development Management are employed within 
Albion Archaeology which is fully funded from trading activities. 

 

12.0 Aged Debt Analysis 

To be reported next month. 

 

13.0 Payments Indicator 

No data on payments within terms currently available. To be included in future 
reports. 

 

14.0 List of Appendices 

Appendix A  Detailed revenue net expenditure by service area 

Appendix B  Capital expenditure monitoring 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 120



Director Annual Budget Profiled 
Budget

Actual spend Variance Full Year 
Forecast

Full Year 
Forecast 
Variance

(C) - (B)
Net Expenditure £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Director of Sustainable Commun 826 619 1,164 545 766 (60)

Director of Sustainable Commun 233 174 790 616 233 0

Service Development 593 445 374 (71) 533 (60)

Economic Growth & Regeneration 1,147 860 915 55 1,112 (35)

Economic Growth & Regeneration 699 524 575 51 698 (1)

Business Growth 273 205 67 (138) 241 (32)

Regeneration & Skills 175 131 273 142 173 (2)

Highways 11,672 8,755 8,289 (466) 11,509 (163)

Highways (93) (69) 160 229 (45) 48

Highways Contracts 6,462 4,847 4,212 (635) 6,212 (250)

Traffic Management 475 356 284 (72) 475 0

Passenger Transport 4,828 3,621 3,633 12 4,867 39

Planning and Dev Strategy 2,941 2,206 2,526 320 2,892 (49)

Strategic Planning, Housing St (271) (203) 192 395 (271) 0

Development Plan 1,537 1,153 1,190 37 1,536 (1)

Housing Strategy & Community 795 596 505 (91) 794 (1)

Transport Policy & Programme 880 660 639 (21) 833 (47)

Waste 16,988 12,741 12,118 (623) 17,056 68

Waste 798 599 755 156 823 25

Waste Operations 16,076 12,057 11,334 (723) 16,147 71

Strategy 114 85 29 (56) 86 (28)

Development Management 2,258 1,694 1,654 (40) 2,240 (18)

Development Management (746) (559) 991 1,550 (745) 1

Development Control Manager 1 1,302 976 (1,501) (2,477) 1,148 (154)

Development Control Manager 2 821 616 1,038 422 822 1

Building Control 881 661 814 153 985 104

Albion Archaeology 0 0 312 312 30 30

Community Safety & Public Prot 3,141 2,356 2,195 (161) 3,177 36

Community Safety & Public Prot (280) (210) (25) 185 (281) (1)

Emergency Planning 230 172 120 (52) 256 26

Area Public Protection 1 1,042 782 793 11 1,043 1

Area Public Protection 2 792 594 589 (5) 792 0

Community Safety 1,357 1,018 718 (300) 1,367 10

BEaR Project 285 214 (46) (260) 285 0

BEaR Project 285 214 (46) (260) 285 0

Total 39,258 29,445 28,815 (630) 39,037 (221)

Agenda Item 13
Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Summary Capital Monitoring - December 2009 Appendix B Period 9

General Fund

Original 
Budget 
2009/10

Slippage from 
08/09

In Year Budget 
Adjustments 
(incl. approved 
slippage to 
10/11)

Current  
Budget  
Approved Actual to Date

Forecast 
Outturn

Additional 
Slippage to 
10/11

Director £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 %

Business Transformation 304 727 (523) 508 166 374 0 (134) -26%

Children, Families & Learning (schools & non shools) 15,635 5,726 (3,835) 17,526 8,231 16,049 (1,479) 2 0%

Children, Families & Learning (leisure & culture) 8,739 373 (6,225) 2,887 1,351 2,887 0 0 0%

Corporate Resources 4,972 657 (1,537) 4,182 636 4,443 0 261 6%

Social Care Health & Housing 4,225 7,914 (3,130) 9,009 2,578 8,126 0 (883) -10%

Sustainable Communities 31,111 4,334 (3,371) 32,074 12,257 26,866 0 (5,208) -16%

Less Budgeted Net Slippage going forward (15,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

Total  Expendiure 49,986 19,731 (18,621) 66,186 25,219 58,745 (1,479) (5,962)  

Grants & Contributions (32,342) (14,851) 7,448 (39,745) (16,526) (39,745) 0 0 0%
Revenue Contribution (70) 0 0 (70) 0 (70) 0 0 0%
Borrowing (8,787) 0 0 (8,787) 0 (8,787) 0 0 0%
Capital Receipts (8,787) 0 0 (8,787) 0 (8,787) 0 0 0%

NET General Fund 0 4,880 (11,173) 8,797 8,693 1,356 (1,479) (5,962)  

Forecast Variance to 
Approved Current 

Budget 

A
genda Item

 13
P

age 123



Housing Revenue Account

Original 
Budget 
2009/10

Slippage from 
08/09

In Year Budget 
Adjustments 
(incl. approved 
slippage to 
10/11)

Current  
Budget  
Approved Actual to Date

Forecast 
Outturn

Additional 
Slippage to 
10/11

Director £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 %

SCH&H 5,686 (79) 0 5,607 3,101 5,578 0 (29) -1%

Total Expenditure 5,686 (79) 0 5,607 3,101 5,578 0 (29)  

Grants & Contributions (3,649) 0 0 (3,649) 0 (3,649) 0 0 0%
Revenue Contribution (343) 0 0 (343) 0 (343) 0 0 0%
Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
Capital Receipts (1,694) 79 0 (1,615) 0 (1,615) 0 0 0%

NET Housing Revenue Account 0 0 0 0 3,101 (29) 0 (29)  

NET TOTAL Capital Programme 0 4,880 (11,173) 8,797 11,794 1,327 (1,479) (5,991)  

Forecast Variance to 
Approved Current 

Budget 

A
genda Item

 13
P

age 124



 

 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 23 February 2010 

Subject: Work Programme 2009-2010 

Report of: Jon Partridge, Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

Summary: The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted work 
programme. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Jon Partridge (0300 300 4634) 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: n/a 

 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

The work programme of the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
should contribute to all 5 Council priorities, and will specifically support those 2 directly 
related to the work of the Sustainable Communities directorate, being managing 
growth effectively and creating safer communities. 

Financial: 

None 

Legal: 

None 

Risk Management: 

None 

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None 

Equalities/Human Rights: 

None 

Community Development/Safety: 

None 

Sustainability: 

None 

Agenda Item 14
Page 125



 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee:  
 

 (a)  considers and approves the attached work programme, subject to any 
further amendments it may wish to make; and 
 

 (b)  considers whether it wishes to add any further items to the work 
programme and/or establish any Task Forces to assist it in reviewing 
specific items.  
 

 

Work Programme 

1. At its first meeting the Committee received a presentation providing an 
overview of the Sustainable Communities directorate and the key issues and 
challenges facing it. A work programme was subsequently drafted containing a 
number of priority items to allow officers to plan accordingly. 

2. The work programme is regularly kept under review by the Chairman, Vice-
Chairman and officers and is amended as appropriate, which also includes 
adding further items during the course of the year if Members so wish and 
capacity exists. This current agreed work programme is attached at Appendix 
A. 

Task Forces 

3. Development Strategy Task Force 

The Development Strategy Task Force has met on a number of occasions to 
consider items including the Design Guide for Central Bedfordshire, site 
allocations for housing and employment and gypsy and traveller sites and the 
Local Transport Plan. An indicative work programme for the Task Force for 
2009 – 2010 is attached at Appendix B.  

4. Member Advisory Group  

The Committee has also established a Member Advisory Group for the 
purpose of consultation on the proposed programme of highway works 
(Minute SCOSC/09/18 refers) composed by Councillors Bastable, Gale, 
Kane, Maudlin and Williams. Following conclusion of the capital allocation by 
Full Council on 26 February 2010 a draft highways programme will be 
developed. The Member Advisory Group will then be canvassed to advise on 
this.  

Conclusion 

5. The Committee is requested to consider the work programme attached and 
make any further amendments it considers necessary. Members are also 
requested to consider highlighting those items within the work programme 
where they wish to establish a Task Force to assist the Committee in its work. 

 
 

Agenda Item 14
Page 126



 

Appendices:  

Appendix A:  Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme 2009 – 10 

Appendix B:  Development Strategy Task Force Work Programme 2009 - 10 

Agenda Item 14
Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



Items marked with * are linked to the Development Strategy Task Force. 
 
NB: each agenda will include (1) an item to receive any recommendations as appropriate from the Development Strategy Task Force in accordance with the requirements 
set out in its purpose and guidance; and (2) a report regarding the Committee’s work programme. 

Appendix A 
Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2009 – 2010  

 

Ref. Indicative Overview & 
Scrutiny Meeting Date  

Report Title Issue Description Comment 

1.  25 March 2010 Development of a Uniformed 
Presence for Central 
Bedfordshire  

 

To consider the options available for 
Central Bedfordshire to undertake 
enforcement of a range of 
environmental and community safety 
legislation (including the Environmental 
Protection Act (EPA) and Clean 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 
(CNEA)) and exploring the role that a 
uniformed team has in that respect. 

The item was deferred from 
26 January 2010. 
Executive: 6 April 2010 

2.  25 March 2010 Central Bedfordshire Energy 
and Recycling Project 
(CBEaR) 

 Executive: 6 April 2010 

3.  25 March 2010 Parish Partnership Scheme  This report was requested 
by the Chairman in 
reference to the OSC on 4 
August 2009. The date is 
still to be confirmed. 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 129



Items marked with * are linked to the Development Strategy Task Force. 
 
NB: each agenda will include (1) an item to receive any recommendations as appropriate from the Development Strategy Task Force in accordance with the requirements 
set out in its purpose and guidance; and (2) a report regarding the Committee’s work programme. 

Ref. Indicative Overview & 
Scrutiny Meeting Date  

Report Title Issue Description Comment 

4.  25 March 2010 Road Accident Casualties  To receive a report detailing Council 
performance in relation to road 
accident casualties, all people 
seriously killed or injured (including 
children under 16). Also to consider 
initiatives underway to resolve this 
issue and best practice from 
elsewhere.  

This report was requested at 
the Committee meeting on 
24 November 2009. 

 
 

5.  20 April 2010 TBC   

6.  18 May 2010 Waste Management Strategy To consider the first strategy document 
required by a new duty on all Local 
Authorities (providing waste 
minimisation and recycling solutions to 
2020 ensuring alignment with other 
CBC policies/ priorities). 

 

7. * 18 May 2010 Housing Strategy  To receive the final draft strategy and 
any appropriate considerations by the 
Development Strategy Task Force prior 
to submission to the Executive. 

Reports will also be received 
by the Development 
Strategy Task Force prior to 
submission to the 
Committee.  
Executive: 8 June 2010 

8.  18 May 2010 CCTV Service Options To consider options available to move 
to an approach for the provision of a 
CCTV service within Central 
Bedfordshire. 

This item was deferred from 
26 January 2010. 
Executive: 8 June 2010 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 130



Items marked with * are linked to the Development Strategy Task Force. 
 
NB: each agenda will include (1) an item to receive any recommendations as appropriate from the Development Strategy Task Force in accordance with the requirements 
set out in its purpose and guidance; and (2) a report regarding the Committee’s work programme. 

Ref. Indicative Overview & 
Scrutiny Meeting Date  

Report Title Issue Description Comment 

9.  July 2010 (TBC) Winter Maintenance Policies  To consider the lessons learnt from the 
weather throughout winter 2009 – 2010 
and to understand the Council’s winter 
maintenance policies and the ways in 
which they are carried out. To consider 
what improvements can be made to 
these policies in light of recent 
experience.  

This item was requested by 
Councillor Snelling 

10. * August 2010 (TBC) Local Development 
Framework (North): Gypsy 
and Traveller DPD 

To consider results of consultation and 
draft submission DPD, prior to 
consideration by Executive and Council 

Executive and Council 
approval needed prior to 
submission.  
Executive: 14 September 2010 

11.  October 2010 (TBC) Local Area Economic 
Assessment 

To consider the outcomes of the local 
area economic assessment and agree 
the priorities for the development of the 
Central Bedfordshire Economic 
Development and Regeneration 
Strategy and action plan. 

 

12. * March 2011 (TBC) LDF for the former Mid Beds 
Area: Gypsy & Traveller DPD 

To note the Inspector’s Draft Report 
into the Gypsy & Traveller DPD 
following Examination and the changes 
required by the Inspector  

Pre-consideration may be 
required by the Task Force 

 

13.  TBC Central Bedfordshire 
Economic Development and 
Regeneration Strategy 

To agree and adopt the strategy for 
Central Bedfordshire. 

 A
genda Item

 14
P

age 131



Items marked with * are linked to the Development Strategy Task Force. 
 
NB: each agenda will include (1) an item to receive any recommendations as appropriate from the Development Strategy Task Force in accordance with the requirements 
set out in its purpose and guidance; and (2) a report regarding the Committee’s work programme. 

Ref. Indicative Overview & 
Scrutiny Meeting Date  

Report Title Issue Description Comment 

14. * TBC Local Transport Plan (LTP3) To consider the proposed Local 
Transport Plan (LTP3) prior to 
submission to Executive for approval. 

Pre-consideration of the 
draft LTP3 would be given 
by the LDF Task Force. 

15.  TBC Congestion Strategy for 
Central Bedfordshire  

  

16.  TBC Items related to the 
Passenger Transport Review  

Further to the Committees agreement 
to act as a reference group for the 
project there will be various items to be 
add to the work programme at 
appropriate stages in the project.  

 

17.  TBC Joint Local Development 
Framework for Luton & the 
former South Beds Area: 
Core Strategy 

To consider the Council’s response to 
the Draft Submission Core Strategy 
following formal approval & publication 
by the Joint Planning Committee 

Pre-consideration of the 
Draft Submission DPD 
would be given by the LDF 
Task Force. 

18.  TBC Development Strategy Task 
Force 

4 monthly reports on progress and the 
work programme of the Task Force 

 

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 132



Appendix B 

Development Strategy Task Force Work Programme 2009 - 2010 

 
Ref. Indicative Task 

Force Meeting Date  
Report Title Issue Description Comment 

1.  8 March 2010 Housing Strategy 

 

(i) To receive the draft housing 
strategy including details on 
the SHMA and how the 
outcomes of that assessment 
have been applied to develop 
a housing strategy that is fit for 
purpose for Central 
Bedfordshire  

(ii) to receive the outcomes of 
stakeholder consultation  

(iii) to recommend the document 
for formal public consultation 
and provide any further 
guidance to a final draft of the 
Strategy prior to its submission 
to the Executive 

Members of the SCHH OSC 
will also be invited to attend 
this meeting. This item was 
originally scheduled for 14 
January but was put back to 
enable the Task Force to 
receive feedback from 
Member and stakeholder 
workshops and to receive 
details from the SHMA.  

Contact: Mark Saccoccio 

2.  7 April 2010  TBC   

3.  May 2010 Local Development Framework 
(North): Site Allocations DPD 

To consider results of draft 
submission consultation and agree 
any pre-submission suggested 
changes  

The Council cannot amend 
the document following pre-
submission consultation. 
However, changes can be put 
forward for the Inspector’s 
consideration.  

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 133



Ref. Indicative Task 
Force Meeting Date  

Report Title Issue Description Comment 

4.  June 2010 Local Development Framework 
(South): Dunstable Town Centre 
Strategy and Masterplan SPD 

Consideration of draft SPD as part of 
the public consultation, to provide 
comments to the JPC prior to final 
approval of the SPD in October  

Date for item to be confirmed. 

Author: Andy Lewis, Town 
Centre Development Officer 

5.  June 2010 Local Development Framework 
(North): Biggleswade Town 
Centre Strategy and Masterplan 
SPD 

Consideration of draft SPD prior to 
public consultation 

Was originally scheduled for 
March 2010.  

Author: Samuel Caldbeck, 
Major Projects Office 

6.  August 2010 Local Development Framework 
(North): Gypsy and Traveller 
DPD 

To consider results of consultation 
and draft submission DPD, prior to 
consideration by Executive and 
Council 

Executive and Council 
approval needed prior to 
submission.  

Contact: Richard Fox 

7.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(North and South): Central 
Bedfordshire Planning 
Obligations Strategy SPD 

 

To comment on full review of 
existing SPD for consultation 

This new SPD will cover the 
whole of Central Bedfordshire 
and will bring together two 
S106 regimes for the first 
time.  

Contact: Mark Saccoccio 

8.  September 2010 Local Development Framework 
(North and South): Central 
Bedfordshire Planning 
Obligations Strategy SPD 

To consider full review of existing 
SPD following consultation, prior to 
consideration by Executive and Joint 
Committee 

SPD needs to be formally 
adopted by Executive and 
Joint Committee. 

Contact: Mark Saccoccio A
genda Item

 14
P

age 134



Ref. Indicative Task 
Force Meeting Date  

Report Title Issue Description Comment 

9.  November 2010 Local Development Framework 
(North): Gypsy and Traveller 
DPD 

To consider results of draft 
submission consultation and agree 
DPD for submission to Secretary of 
State.  

 

10.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Gypsy & Traveller DPD 

To note the Inspector’s Final Report 
into this DPD following Examination 
and the changes required by the 
Inspector 

 

11.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Development 
Management DPD 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Issues and Options 
consultation document issued by the 
Joint Planning Committee 

 

12.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Site Allocations DPD 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Issues and Options 
consultation document issued by the 
Joint Planning Committee 

 

13.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Gypsy & Traveller DPD 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Issues and Options 
consultation document issued by the 
Joint Planning Committee 

 

14.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Development 
Management DPD 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Preferred Options consultation 
document issued by the Joint 
Planning Committee 

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 135



Ref. Indicative Task 
Force Meeting Date  

Report Title Issue Description Comment 

15.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Site Allocations DPD 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Preferred Options consultation 
document issued by the Joint 
Planning Committee 

 

16.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Gypsy & Traveller DPD 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Preferred Options consultation 
document issued by the Joint 
Planning Committee 

 

17.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Core Strategy 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Submission Draft consultation 
document issued by the Joint 
Planning Committee 

 

18.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Development 
Management DPD 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Submission Draft consultation 
document issued by the Joint 
Planning Committee 

 

19.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Site Allocations DPD 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Submission Draft consultation 
document issued by the Joint 
Planning Committee 

 

20.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Gypsy & Traveller DPD 

To consider the Council’s response 
to the Submission Draft consultation 
document issued by the Joint 
Planning Committee 

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 136



Ref. Indicative Task 
Force Meeting Date  

Report Title Issue Description Comment 

21.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Core Strategy 

To note the Inspector’s Final Report 
into this DPD following Examination 
and the changes required by the 
Inspector 

 

22.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Development 
Management DPD 

To note the Inspector’s Final Report 
into this DPD following Examination 
and the changes required by the 
Inspector 

 

23.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Site Allocations DPD 

To note the Inspector’s Final Report 
into this DPD following Examination 
and the changes required by the 
Inspector 

 

24.  TBC Local Development Framework 
(South): Gypsy & Traveller DPD 

To note the Inspector’s Final Report 
into this DPD following Examination 
and the changes required by the 
Inspector 

 

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 137



P
age 138

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 Requested Items
	100223 Highways Customer process (2) App A V02
	100223 Highways Customer Process (3) - Appendix B - T&PC Satisfaction 2006 v 2009 Results
	100223 Highways customer Process (4) App C V01

	10 Gypsy and Traveller Development Plan Document (DPD) for Central Bedfordshire North
	100223 Shortlisted Sites App1 Amended

	11 Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options Consultation
	100223 Waste Core Strat Options App A V01

	12 Quarter 3 Performance Report
	100223 Q3 performance (2) (App A) V02

	13 Quarter 3 Budget Management Report
	100223 Q3 Budget Management (2) (App A) V01
	100223 Q3 Budget Management (3) (App A) V01
	100223 Q3 Budget Management (4) Capital Expenditure Monitoring (App B) V01

	14 Work Programme 2009-2010
	100223 Work Programme (2) App A V01
	100223 Work Programme (3) App B V01


